2005

Latu v. Latu : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction is conferred on Court of Appeals by Utah Code Annotated 78-2a-3(h)

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. Issue Number One: Whether trial court made a reversible error when it awarded judgment for Respondent for \$2,448.39 to recover Petitioner's share of the uninsured medical/dental bills for the minor children, when Respondent provided no factual proof to establish the specific requirements for recovery as required by law, 78-45-7.15(8) Utah Code Annotated, nor did the trial court obey the specific requirements of the law for denial of request for recovery, 78-45-7.15(9). Trial court abused its discretionary and judicial powers when it refused to obey the specific requirements of the law for awarding recovery or, denying recovery, and thereby established reversible error.

2. Issue Number Two: Whether trial court committed reversible error in arbitrarily awarding Respondent judgment against Petitioner for \$8,383.50, to pay back Respondent's tax refunds legally and lawfully garnished by IRS to pay owed taxes for years when both parties filed joint tax returns, as required by Federal Law

in accordance with the IRS 20041040 Instruction Booklet, pg 17, “Joint and several tax liability.” Trial court abused its discretionary and judicial powers when without relying on any applicable law, arbitrarily over-ruled requirements by Federal Government for joint filers to pay owed taxes, by ordering Petitioner to pay back Respondent’s money legally and lawfully garnished by the IRS.

STATEMENT OF CASE

This is the case of a trial court abusing its discretion and judicial powers by willfully and intentionally rising above its authority, responsibility, and duty to enforce laws passed by the legislature regarding recovery of uninsured medical bills paid, and legal and lawful garnishment by IRS from joint filers to pay for owed taxes. The trial court ignored the laws it is given the power to enforce and instead enforced what it subjectively thinks to be better.

The facts of this case are a clear visual aid of the trial court’s ignoring the clear and specific requirements of the applicable laws regarding the issues of the trial, thereby creating reversible errors that deprived Petitioner of the equal protection and benefits of the law. And Petitioner is powerless to do anything about it since the year 2000 when Petitioner first appeared before this trial court for his divorce. Petitioner is now appealing to the higher court for help, that with the facts provided and application of the applicable laws as cited, the trial court has

committed reversible errors that this higher Court of Appeals has the authority and power to reverse and thereby achieve the purposes of the law.

RELEVANT FACTS

The following facts are relevant to the issues of this case:

1. In October 19, 2000 this same trial court granted divorce to Petitioner from Respondent. Pp. 0350
2. On July 1, 2005, Petitioner appeared without the opportunity of a lawyer, to answer and defend against Respondent's Motion for Order to Show Cause. Pp. 1002
3. Respondent sued to recover Petitioner's share of uninsured medical/dental bills for the minor children for a total amount of \$2,448.39. Pp. 0992
4. Trial court awarded Respondent judgment against Petitioner for the amount requested, citing statute 78-45-7.15(6) Utah Code saying "the law requires that both parents pay one-half of all medical and dental expenses for the minor children that are not covered by insurance, in addition to child support." Pp. 1027
5. The record of the trial is very clear that Respondent and her lawyer did never establish during trial whether or not these bills were infact

uninsured and how they became uninsured, in order to be within the requirements of the statute U.C.A. 78-45-7.15(6) Pp. 1002

6. The trial record is clear that Respondent and her lawyer failed to provide the facts required by statute for recovery on medical bills as specified by 78-45-7.15(8) Pp. 1002
7. Trial court did not obey but ignored and arbitrarily ruled against the specific requirements of the law 78-45-7.15(9) on denying recovery. Pp. 1027
8. Respondent sued Petitioner to recover her money that was legally and lawfully garnished by IRS to pay for owed taxes for years of joint filing. Pp. 0992
9. Trial court did not rely on any law or cite any legal basis but arbitrarily ordered Petitioner to pay back Respondent money legally and lawfully garnished by IRS for owed taxes by joint filers, which both parties were. Pp. 1027
10. This trial court has heard Petitioner's divorce related cases since the year 2000. Pp.0165 – 1033.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Since the year 2000 when Petitioner first appeared before this trial court on Petitioner's request for divorce from Respondent, up to the present case being appealed, not once has Petitioner ever won in all the divorce related cases (which were many) heard by trial court. Even at times when finances allowed, Petitioner had the opportunity to have legal representation but the result is the same, Petitioner has never won in this trial court – as one would imagine the many contempt orders against Petitioner since the year 2000. As a matter of fact, this trial court has barred Petitioner from court since the year 2002. Pp. 0727 and only Respondent enjoyed the legal rights to seek and received the help of the trial court.

This is the case of a trial court's willful and intentional abusing its discretion and judicial powers by arbitrarily ignoring the clear and specific requirements of the laws regarding recovery of paid uninsured medical bills¹; and legal and lawful garnishment by IRS of joint filers' money to pay for owed taxes².

The facts of this case are a clear visual aid of the trial court rising above its responsibility and duty to enforce laws passed by the State Legislature regarding recovery of uninsured medical bills paid, and Congress authorizing IRS to legally and lawfully garnish joint filers money to pay for owed taxes. The trial court

¹ U.C.A 1953 78-45-7.15(6)(8)(9)

² IRS 20041040 INSTRUCTIONS BOOKLET, Married Filing Jointly "Joint and several tax liability, p17.

ignored the laws it is given the power to enforce and instead, enforced what it subjectively thinks to be better.

Such errors committed by the trial court have obstructed justice and deprived Petitioner of the protection and benefits of the law thereby creating much financial, health, and emotional hardship for Petitioner and his children, and the facts of this case being appealed are the clear visual aid of the trial court's reversible errors. Such sufferings and legal deprivation cannot be the intentions of the lawmakers, nor are they the values such highly civilized societies as we are deem worthy of legal protection by laws that courts are hugely empowered to enforce.

Petitioner is powerless to do anything about our sufferings at the reversible orders of the trial court, but to stay committed to the cause of providing the guidance and support that have enabled my children to become contributing citizens to our society—in a major way. Petitioner appeals to this higher Utah Court of Appeals for fair, equitable, and protection by the law and reverse the errors of the trial court as established by the facts of this trial and requirements of the applicable laws cited. Please do not send the case back to the trial court.

DETAIL OF ARGUMENT

Our society has progressed to great heights of collective goodness because all citizens are required to live by the rule of law; enjoy the legal rights

protected by the law; and are benefited from the values that laws are passed by lawmakers to protect. This equality makes us the civilized society that we are, and no one individual is more powerful than the law.

In this case, the law is clear in its requirement that “A parent who incurs medical expenses shall provide written verification of the cost and payment of medical expenses to the other parent within 30 days of payment”³ This is the legal requirement for recovery. Respondent did not do this 30 day notice as required by the statute, and the record of the trial contains no record of Respondent providing proof she has met this requirement. Pp. 102. The law is also specific and clear that “a parent incurring medical expenses may be denied the right to receive credit for the expenses or to recover the other parent’s share of the expenses if that parent fails to comply with Subsections ... (8)” as cited above.⁴ And the trial court ignored this requirement of the law, and arbitrarily awarded Respondent her request to recover Petitioner’s share of the dental expenses she alleged to have paid.

³ U.C.A. 1953, 78-45-7.15(8)

⁴ U.C.A. 1953, 78-45-7.15(9)

On the issue of the taxes, the Federal Government – IRS, is clear on its instruction for tax obligations of joint filers: “If you file a joint return, both you and your spouse are generally responsible for the tax ... due on the return.”⁵

Without citing any applicable law or explanation of legal basis, trial court again ignored the authority and powers of the Federal Government – IRS, to legally and lawfully garnish Respondent’s account just as it has garnished Petitioner’s paychecks and tax refunds, to pay for the taxes owed for the years of the joint filing.

The facts contained in the records of the trial that is now before the Utah Court of Appeals as discussed in Petitioner’s Brief, are the clear visual aids of the trial court’s willful deviation from the plain and clear requirements of the applicable laws cited. Such judicial deviation is a mockery to the provision of the law, establishing the reversible errors Petitioner is now asking the Utah Court of Appeals for reversal of the trial court’s errors.

CONCLUSION

The facts presented in this Brief as supported by the records of the trial, bring to light before this Utah Court of Appeals the trial court’s abuses of its

⁵ IRS 20041040 INSTRUCTIONS BOOKLET, Married Filing Jointly “Joint and several tax liability, p17.

discretionary and judicial powers, creating reversible errors that obstruct justice, deny the benefits of the law and the legal rights of Petitioner. Such abuses by the trial court encourage and allow lawyers in our case an unequal preference, to continue in their corrupting of the justice system by blindfolding judges with false evidence that sound good but not meeting the requirements of the law. In such a legal environment, good is punished as being bad and bad is rewarded as being good, perpetuating the painful unfairness, depriving inequity, and much financial ruins to Petitioner and his children.

Certainly these results cannot be the intention of the laws created to protect the values our society is seeking to enjoy. These are the fruits of the trial court's decision not to enforce the laws enacted by the lawmakers but what the trial judge subjectively thinks should be.

Respondent did not meet the requirements of the cited applicable laws:

- (1) A parent who incurs medical expenses shall provide written verification of the cost and payment of medical expenses to the other parent within 30 days of payment has not been met.⁶
- (2) A parent incurring medical expenses may be denied the right to receive credit for the expenses or to recover the other parent's

⁶ U.C.A 1953, 78-45-7.15 (8)

share of the expenses if that parent fails to comply with

Subsections ... and (8).⁷

- (3) If you file a joint return, both you and your spouse are generally responsible for the tax and any interest or penalties due on the return.⁸

The court record of the trial on this case is before the Honorable Justices of the Utah Appellate Court of Appeals, testifying that Respondent did not meet the requirements of the cited applicable laws and instructions that would support the Orders of the trial court being appealed.

Petitioner sincerely petitions the Honorable Justices of the Utah Court of Appeals to intervene and reverse the Orders of the trial court and please not sent the case back to the trial court. Because the trial court made a reversible error in its Order, the award for Respondent's attorney fees should be dropped and Petitioner's request for lost wages be granted

Petitioner also request published decision and oral argument.