2005

Latu v. Latu : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

Jurisdiction

Jurisdiction is conferred on The Utah Court Of Appeals by §78-2a-3(2)(h) UTAH CODE (2005).

Issues Presented For Review, Preservation Of Issues And Standard Of Review

Issue. The trial court's Order on Order to Show Cause of July 1, 2005 should be affirmed when it awarded judgment to Respondent/Appellee for Petitioner's unpaid share of the children's medical/dental expenses and for IRS liens which the Petitioner was ordered to pay in the divorce decree, but which had been garnished from Respondent.

Standard of Review.

Medical Expenses - When a party "argues that there is no evidence to support the trial court's ruling to the contrary. . . .[u]nder applicable standards of review, we affirm if the judgment is supported by competent evidence." *Beckmann v. Beckmann*, 685 P.2d 1045, 1050 (Utah 1984). "We review this application of findings to statutory law for an abuse of discretion. See Clark v. Clark, 2001 UT 44, P14, 27 P.3d 538; Willey v. Willey, 951 P.2d 226, 230 (Utah 1997)." *Kelley v. Kelley*, 79 P.3d 428, 429 (Utah 2003). "'Where our review requires us to examine statutory language, we look first to the plain meaning of the statute.' Young v. Salt Lake City Sch. Dist., 2002 UT 64, P10, 52 P.3d 1230.

Moreover, we 'may affirm a judgment, order, or decree appealed from if it is sustainable

on any legal ground or theory apparent on the record, even though that ground or theory was not identified by the lower court as the basis of its ruling.’ Boud v. SDNCO, Inc., 2002 UT 83, P10, 54 P.3d 1131 (internal quotations and citation omitted).” *D.A. v. State (In the Interest of W.A.)*, 63 P.3d 607, 611 (Utah 2002).

IRS Lien Issue – “Questions of law are reviewed for correctness, and the trial court’s factual findings are reversed only if clearly erroneous.” State v. Harmon, 910 P.2d 1196, 1199 (Utah 1995).” *Dowling v. Bullen*, 94 P.3d 915, 917 (Utah 2004). Arguments that present questions of law we review for correctness. *Allen v. Hall*, 107 P.3d 85, 87 (Utah App. 2005)

Attorneys fees – “When reviewing a trial court’s determination of . . . attorney fees, an appellate court reviews them for abuse of discretion. Salmon v. Davis County, 916 P.2d 890, 892, 898 (Utah 1996)(stating that determination of reasonable attorney fees is in sound discretion of the trial court because of its familiarity with litigation, attorneys, and attorney fees in general).” *Willey v. Willey*, 951 P.2d 226, 277 (Utah 1997). “Attorney fees are awarded only when authorized by statute or by contract. “The award of attorney fees is a matter of law, which we review for correctness. Paul DeGroot Bldg. Servs., L.L.C. v. Gallacher, 2005 UT 20, P18, 112 P.3d 490. However, a trial court has “broad discretion in determining what constitutes a reasonable fee, and we will consider that determination against an abuse-of-discretion standard.” Dixie State Bank v. Bracken, 764

P.2d 985, 991 (Utah 1988) (internal quotation marks and citations omitted). "The standard of review on appeal of [the amount of] a trial court's award of attorney fees is patent error or clear abuse of discretion." Valcarce v. Fitzgerald, 961 P.2d 305, 316 (Utah 1998) (internal quotation marks and citations omitted)." *Jensen v. Sawyers*, 130 P.3d 325, 348 (Utah 2005).

Preservation. Petitioner made no record of preserving the issue for appeal or his grounds for seeking review on any issue.

Determinative Constitutional Provisions, Statutes Ordinances And Rules

Section 30-3-7.15 Utah Code (2005)

Rule 4-911 Rules of Judicial Administration (Utah 2002)(repealed Nov. 1, 2003)

Rule 102 Utah Rules of Civil Procedure

Statement Of The Case

The parties to this dispute were divorced October 19, 2000 after lengthy and contested litigation. The minor children of the parties were awarded to their mother's custody subject to father's parent time. Mother was awarded child support and the statutory provisions regarding day care and medical expenses, pursuant to §78-45-7.15. UTAH CODE (2000). R. 345-346. The decree also provided that Father was to pay most of the debts of the marriage, including the IRS liens on the home. R. 342. Many post-divorce

motions and hearings were held to enforce the Orders set forth in the divorce decree. The most recent motion for order to show cause, filed by the mother, Respondent/Appellee [hereinafter “Respondent”], was for judgment against Petitioner/Appellant, who is the father, [hereinafter “Petitioner”] for his unpaid share of children’s medical expenses and for his failure to pay the liens on the marital home, as ordered, together with an award for attorneys’ fees. R. 1031. The court ruled in favor of the Respondent, which Order Petitioner now appeals.

Summary of Arguments

While three different attorneys have represented Petitioner on various occasions since 1999 when this case commenced, Petitioner has refused to accept the reality of the court’s orders. Petitioner has consistently been held in contempt for violating the court orders on numerous occasions. *See*, Orders in Addenda of May 31, 2000, July 27, 2000, April 27, 2001, January 15, 2002, March 14, 2002, February 10, 2003, October 23, 2003, and March 3, 2004; R.139, 235, 463, 698, 727, 774, 825, and 915.

The statute regarding medical expenses provides that the court “may” deny the “parent incurring medical expenses . . . the right to receive credit for the expenses or to recover the other parent’s share of the expenses” if the parent fails to “provide written verification of the cost and payment of medical expenses to the other parent with 30 days

of payment.” §78-45-7.15(8) and (9) Utah Code (2004). While the Respondent’s proffered testimony was that she did provide copies of the expenses to Petitioner, whether or not that is accurate, the court still has discretion to allow her to receive the credit for those expenses. R.1048:4:3. Given the history of Petitioner’s non-compliance with the court’s orders, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in awarding Respondent judgment against Petitioner for the unpaid medical expenses for the children.

The divorce decree clearly provides that Petitioner was to pay the liens on the party’s home. R.0342. Respondent presented evidence that the IRS garnished her tax refund to pay some of these liens, which evidence was not disputed by Petitioner. R. 1006-1023. Therefore, the court correctly awarded judgment against Petitioner for these amounts. Given that the Respondent prevailed on her claims from her motion, the trial court appropriately awarded her judgment for her attorneys’ fees and costs. See, Affidavit of Attorney fees R. 1005.

The Petitioner should be barred from seeking the relief of the appellate court as Petitioner has consistently been in contempt of the trial court’s orders. R.139, 235, 463, 698, 727, 774, 825, and 915.

Argument

Petitioner seeks to have this court overturn the trial court’s Order on Order to Show Cause in which the court awarded judgment against Petitioner for \$11,669.33,

consisting of \$2,448.39 in his share of unpaid medical expenses for the minor children; \$8,383.50 for IRS liens the court had previously ordered Petitioner to pay in the divorce decree, and \$837.44 in attorneys' fees.

Petitioner's argument regarding the medical expenses is that the court refused to abide by §78-45-7.15(9) in awarding judgment against him because the "record of the trial contains no record of Respondent providing proof that she has met this requirement." Appellant's brief p.11. Regarding the IRS liens, Petitioner relies on the IRS 2004 1040 Instructions booklet, which provides that generally both spouses are responsible for taxes due when a return is filed jointly. Appellant's brief p.14.

I. THE STATUTE GIVES THE COURT DISCRETION TO AWARD THE CREDIT FOR MEDICAL EXPENSES TO THE PARENT INCURRING THOSE EXPENSES

The divorce decree provides, in relevant part the following provision regarding medical and dental expenses for the children:

7. MEDICAL AND DENTAL EXPENSES OF CHILDREN. Both parents shall share equally in all uninsured routine medical and dental expenses, [including but not limited to one-half of expenses for surgery, orthodontic care, psychological or psychiatric care, hospitalization, physical therapy, ophthalmology and optometry, broken limbs, and continuing illnesses or allergies such as diabetes or asthma] as well as all other reasonable and necessary uninsured medical and dental expenses, in accordance with §78-45-7.15, Utah Code Annotated (as amended).
 - a. Either parent who incurs medical expenses for parties' minor children shall provide written verification of the cost and

payment of such medical expenses to the other parent within 30 days of payment.

- b. In addition to any other sanctions provided by the Court, either parent incurring medical expenses *may* be denied the right to receive credit for the expenses or to recover the other parent's share of the expenses if the parent knowingly and willingly fails to comply with subparagraph a, as applicable. (emphasis added). R.345-346.

Respondent has obtained judgments against the Petitioner on numerous other occasions for Petitioner's failure to pay his obligations regarding the children. *See*, Orders of 7-27-00, 5-31-00, 1-15-02, and 2-10-03 R. 235, 139, 698, and 774. Respondent testified, by proffer, that she had incurred the expenses for the children and had provided receipts to Petitioner on this particular occasion. R. 1048:4:3. Petitioner did not deny, at the hearing, that the expenses for the children had been incurred. He did not deny, at the hearing, that he had not received notice of such expenses. He did not deny, at the hearing, that he knew the provisions of the divorce decree. He did not deny, at the hearing, that he had not paid his share of these medical/dental expenses for the children.

Instead, the record shows that Petitioner's argument, at the hearing, was that he had paid thousands of dollars in child support, and thus should not now be required to pay additional expenses in behalf of the children. R. 1048:4:21 to 6:16. Petitioner cannot now claim for the first time, on appeal, that Respondent should not be credited because "the trial contains no record of Respondent providing proof". Appellant's brief p.11. When a party

raises an “argument for the first time on appeal. Absent plain error or extraordinary circumstances, we do not address issues raised for the first time on appeal. State v. Lopez, 886 P.2d 1105, 1113 (Utah 1994) (“The general rule is that issues not raised at trial cannot be argued for the first time on appeal . . .”).” *Bd. of Trs. v. Keystone Conversions*, 103 P.2d 686, 695 (Utah 2004). Moreover, Petitioner has provided no evidence, and there is no support in the record, for his claim that he did not receive copies of the medical bills for the children.

Even if the court allows Petitioner to make such an argument, the trial court still has discretion to provide Respondent with the credit or not, if it believes that Respondent did not previously provide evidence of the medical expenses to Petitioner. In this case, the court was well aware of the Petitioner’s litigation history and his past non-compliance with the court orders. It did not hesitate to find that the expenses were incurred for the children and that Petitioner owed his one-half of such expenses to Respondent. There is no evidence the court abused its discretion in doing so, and the ruling should be affirmed.

II. THE DIVORCE DECREE SUPERCEDES GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS IN THE IRS TAX RETURN INSTRUCTIONS BOOKLET

The Petitioner objects to the trial court’s award of judgment against him to offset funds garnished from the Respondent for the IRS tax liens placed on the marital home during the marriage. Petitioner’s argument is that the taxes were incurred jointly during

time periods when the parties filed jointly, and therefore, based upon the IRS 1040 Instruction Booklet, both he and Respondent should be “generally responsible for the tax.” Appellant’s brief p.12.

Setting aside the relevance of the IRS Instruction booklet as a legal authority, Petitioner’s assessment that the parties would be “generally responsible” for the taxes incurred jointly during the marriage is likely correct. However, clearly the reason the instruction states that the parties would “generally” be jointly responsible, is because specific situations often arise that change those responsibilities. One of those distinguishing characteristics would be a court order, as exists in this case, a fact which the Petitioner has evidently either selectively forgotten or elected to ignore.

The divorce decree in this case states clearly that the Petitioner was responsible for the bulk of the debts in the marriage, including the IRS tax liens on the home. R. 342. It states, in relevant part:

The Petitioner is ordered to assume and pay, and hold Respondent harmless from liability on the following debts (all figures are approximate): . . . ii.
IRS - \$84,000.00

Nowhere in Petitioner’s argument, either at the hearing before the trial court, or in his brief, does he even reference this court order, i.e. the divorce decree. Petitioner presents no viable legal theory whereby he should be excused from obeying the court’s orders, other than a possible reference to the fact that he has “never won in this trial

court—as one would imagine”. Appellant’s brief p.9. There is no basis for the appellate court to overturn the trial court on this issue and therefore, the trial court’s order should be affirmed.

III. RESPONDENT IS ENTITLED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES ON APPEAL

Petitioner appeals the court’s award of attorneys’ fees against him. R. 1047.

“Generally, when the trial court awards fees in a domestic action to the party who then substantially prevails on appeal, fees will also be awarded to that party on appeal. *Lyngle v. Lyngle*, 831 P.2d 10027, 1031 (Utah App. 1992).” *Osguthorpe v. Osguthorpe*, 872 P.2d1057, 1059 (Utah App. 1994). The appellate court in *Finlayson v. Finlayson*, held that “[a] trial court has discretion to award attorney fees. Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3 (Supp.1993); *Bell v. Bell*, 810 P.2d 489, 493-94 (Utah App. 1991).” 874 P.2d 843 (Utah App. 1994). It further noted the following:

Where a court awards attorney fees incurred by one party seeking to enforce a court order, a court may disregard the financial need of the moving party. *Beardall v. Beardall*, 629 P.2d 425, 427 (Utah 1981)(attorney fees affirmed absent evidence of need where one spouse had to bring three proceedings to compel other spouse to comply with provision of decree); *Stuber v. Stuber*, 121 Utah 632, 244 P.2d 650, 652 (1952)(“There can be no doubt that attorney’s fees are allowable in actions of this type.”); *Tribe v. Tribe*, 59 Utah 112, 202 P.213, 216 (1921)(Court has discretion to award attorney fees in proceeding to enforce provisions of decree “whether for contempt or otherwise”)’ *Lyngle v. Lyngle*, 831 p.2d 1027, 1030 & n.4 (Utah App. 1992)(in action to enforce its own orders, court has discretion to award attorney fees).” *Id.*

The instant action was brought by Respondent to enforce a court order, i.e. the terms of the divorce decree. It was not necessary to show need, though the divorce decree does provide evidence that Petitioner's income was superior to that of the Respondent at the time of the divorce. Petitioner's appeal has no merit and no legal basis. Its effect on Respondent has been solely to prolong the emotional upheaval, which Petitioner has inflicted for the last six years, and add to Respondent's already heavy financial burdens. Respondent was entitled to attorneys' fees in the trial court action and was appropriately awarded judgment for those fees. R.1005; *See also*, Rule 4-911 Rules of Judicial Administration (2002) (repealed Nov. 1, 2003); Rule 102 Utah Rules of Civil Procedure (2005). Respondent should, therefore, be provided an award of attorneys' fees against Petitioner for the cost of defending this appeal, as well. *Osguthorpe v. Osguthorpe*, 872 P.2d1057, 1059 (Utah App. 1994).

IV. PETITIONER IS ENTITLED TO NO RELIEF BASED ON ONGOING CONTEMPT

In the alternative, Petitioner should not be entitled to ask this court for any relief because of his constant contempt with this court's orders. In the six years of constant litigation in this case, since its inception, Petitioner has been found in contempt by the trial court on at least six different occasions, punctuated by two separate jail sentences. *See*, Orders of May 31, 2000, July 27, 2000, April 27, 2001, January 15, 2002, February

10, 2003, October 23, 2003, and March 3, 2004. R. 139, 235, 463, 698, 774, 825, and 915. He has had two petitions to modify dismissed for the same reasons. *See*, Orders of Dismissal of March 14, 2002 and March 3, 2004 R. 727, 917. The history of this case has been one of consistent failure to obey the court orders and a stubborn refusal to acknowledge the authority of the trial court. *Id.*

Now the Petitioner has finally accepted the fact that the trial court will not give him the relief that he desires, he has filed this frivolous appeal. Petitioner has no right to ask the courts for relief when he has refused to abide by its prior orders. The Supreme Court was recently asked to dismiss a case without considering the merits when a party had reportedly "repeatedly and willfully disobeyed [the district court's] orders . . . , destroyed evidence, and refused to recognize the jurisdiction of the Utah courts." *Hentsch Henchoz & Cie v. Gubbay*, 97 P.3d 1283, 1286 (Utah 2004). The Supreme Court noted that that the "Utah Court of Appeals, however, has discussed its authority to dismiss appeals from contemptuous appellants on several occasions." *Id.*

In *D'Aston v. D'Aston*, 790 P.d 590 (Utah Ct. App. 1990), the first Utah case to address the issue, the appellant challenged a divorce decree entered by the trial court. (citations omitted). The court of appeals determined that it could dismiss the appeal because the appellant had failed to pay the amount due her former husband, had failed to post an ordered supersedeas bond, and had been adjudged in contempt by the trial court after "purposefully hiding herself from the jurisdiction of the court and from service." *Id.* at 592-93.

In examining the procedures for dismissal followed by other jurisdictions, the court of appeals noted that there are at least three ways that an appellate court can deal with a contumacious party: (1) the court can dismiss the appeal without allowing the party an opportunity to bring itself into compliance with the trial court's order; (2) the court can allow the party a fixed time to comply with the trial court's order before dismissing the appeal; or (3) the court may, in its discretion, fashion a remedy that is appropriate to the facts and circumstances of the particular case. *Id.* at 593-94 (listing cases); see also *Von Hake V. Thomas*, 881 P.2d 895, 897-98 (Utah Ct. App. 1994) ("*Von Hake II*") (discussing *D'Aston*). . . . see also *Cummings v. Cummings*, 1999 UT App 356, P 11, 993 P.2d 248 (holding that because appellant had been adjudged in contempt and his defiance of court orders had led to the dissipation of the marital assets, the court could, in its discretion, dismiss the appeal and "condition reinstatement of the appeal upon appellant's submission to the court of proof that he had satisfied the judgments held by appellee").

In light of these cases and myriad authorities from other jurisdictions, n6 we conclude that this court, in its discretion, may dismiss the appeals of appellants who have wilfully disobeyed an order of a lower court in the same action. We agree with the approach adopted by the court of appeals that allows the reviewing appellate court to exercise its discretionary authority by fashioning a remedy that is fair and just under the circumstances, taking into account the facts of the particular case. Such authority is indispensable since it would "violate the principles of justice to allow a party who flaunts the orders of the courts to seek judicial assistance" on appeal. *D'Aston*, 790 P.2d 15 593 (additional citations omitted). *Id.* at 1286-1287.

Petitioner has repeatedly been held in contempt. While the trial did find, on one occasion, that "Petitioner has complied with the requirements to purge himself of the contempt sanctions, which were not imposed at the hearing on October 1, 2003", on March 14, 2002 the trial court had actually advised Respondent to file no further motions

with the court for contempt, since it appeared to serve to useful purpose. R. 0727.


Petitioner has failed to pay off the numerous debts ordered by the court and the numerous judgments awarded to Respondent. R. 915. His failures have led to financial hardship for Respondent and an inability to maintain a home for her and the children. Therefore, Respondent respectfully prays that the appellate court deny Petitioner's request for relief herein.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing facts and argument, it is clear that Petitioner has no legal basis for this appeal. The award of medical expenses is pursuant to statute and within the discretion of the court. The award of repayment of the IRS tax liens was pursuant to the clear terms of the divorce decree. Further, Petitioner has been found in contempt by the trial court on numerous occasions and is not entitled to ask this court for relief. Finally, Respondent should be awarded judgment for her fees to defend this action.